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Safe Driving Tips
 




Disclaimer: While the Department for Transport (DfT) has 

made every effort to ensure the information in this document 

is accurate, DfT does not guarantee the accuracy, 

completeness or usefulness of that information; and it 

cannot accept liability for any loss or damages of any kind 

resulting from reliance on the information or guidance this 

document contains. 
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1 Why Should You Care? 
 

The consequences of not driving safely range from the 

inconvenient to the catastrophic. Over 7,500 van and truck 

drivers and passengers are injured in road accidents each 

year - and over 100 of these are killed. 

As a professional driver you have a special responsibility ­

not just to yourself but also to other road users. You can 

meet that responsibility and set a good example by driving 

safely.     

Your employer should ensure that the vehicles you use are 

safe and properly maintained. Or you may be self-employed 

and therefore responsible for the maintenance of your own 

vehicle(s). However, a well maintained vehicle is not in itself 

enough to ensure safety. It’s up to you as a driver to: 

Check your vehicle daily
 


Know your route
 


Be aware of weather forecasts
 


Drive safely
 


Remember - Professional Drivers are Champions of 

Safety. 
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1.1 How Will This Guide Help? 
 

This guide is for you - the professional driver. It offers simple 

advice to help: 

Reduce the potential for injury to yourself
 


Reduce the potential for injury to others
 


Reduce the number of accidents you are involved in
 


Reduce congestion resulting from accidents
 


Save you and your employer money 
 

Reducing the risk of injury and improving safety is important 

for everyone but having the right advice to hand is 

sometimes difficult when you are out on the road. Carry this 

guide in your pocket or cab for quick reference. Keep it 

handy - and cut the risk of accidents. 

There are many guides, manuals and codes of practice 

available on specific aspects of transport. This guide is only 

a summary of the main safety topics - it isn’t comprehensive 

advice. Appendix 1 provides a list of useful organisations 

that can help you find more details. 

1.2 Freight Best Practice 

This booklet is part of a series of free publications produced 

for the Department for Transport (DfT) under the Freight 

Best Practice programme. 

The Freight Best Practice programme provides a wide range 

of free information to help you improve the efficiency of your 

business. For a full list of all the publications and for further 

information, call the Hotline on 0845 877 0 877 or visit the 

website at www.freightbestpractice.org.uk. 
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2 Professional Driving 
 

Driving a truck for a living is NOT the same as owning and 

driving your own car. Professional drivers are in a position of 

great responsibility. You require great skill to carry out your 

job and you are subject to stringent checks. 

2.1 Medical Requirements 

You are required to pass a number of medical tests, 

including an eye test - whether or not you wear glasses or 

contact lenses. Your initial test will have taken place when 

you applied for your first professional licence. A medical will 

also be required every 5 years after the age of 45 and 

annually from the age of 65. 

You must inform the Drivers’ Medical Unit at DVLA if you 

suffer a medical condition or disability that may affect your 

driving. You also have to tell them if you develop a new 

condition or disability or one that has become worse since 

your licence was issued. 

2.2 Drivers’ Hours 

Drivers’ hours are restricted for reasons of road safety, 

working conditions and fair competition. There are maximum 

limits on driving time and minimum requirements for breaks 

and rest periods. Various exemptions exist, some of which 

apply on UK journeys only. 

If you operate under the European Union (EU) drivers’ hours 

and tachograph rules, you will also be subject to the working 

time provisions of the Road Transport (Working Time) 

Regulations. If you do not fall under EU drivers’ hours and 
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tachograph rules, you will normally fall within the scope of 

separate UK legislation on these areas but will still be 

subject to certain aspects of the working time regulations. 

Find out which rules and regulations apply to you and make 

sure you keep proper records. 

For further information on drivers’ hours, visit 

www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/freight/road/workingtime/drivershou 

rsgoods.pdf 

For full details on the working time provisions for mobile 

workers, visit 

www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/freight/road/workingtime/rdtransport 

workingtimeguidance 

For details on the main working time provisions for drivers 

exempt from the EU drivers' hours and tachograph rules, 

visit www.berr.gov.uk/employment/employment­

legislation/employment-guidance/page30342.html 

2.3 Sleepiness 

Professional driving can be hard work. If you start to feel 

sleepy while driving, find a safe place to stop (not the hard 

shoulder of a motorway) as soon as possible and get some 

sleep. 

Modern commercial vehicles are often comfortable but don’t 

be tempted to relax too much! To combat the risk of falling 

asleep at the wheel, you should: 

Plan adequate rest breaks 
 

Get adequate sleep before starting out
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Mins 
15 

Not start a journey if already tired 
 

Avoid driving if you are not 100% fit
 


Never drive if affected by alcohol or drugs 
 

Avoid heavy meals before driving
 


Stay alert - remember that you will feel more sleepy
 


between 2pm and 4pm and early in the morning
 


Keep fresh air circulating in the cab - but remember
 


that cold air, in itself, will do little to stop you falling 

asleep 

If you feel sleepy at any stage when driving, as a temporary 

measure, stop and have a strong caffeine drink and a 

15-minute nap while you wait for the caffeine to take effect. 

The only cure for sleepiness is to get some sleep - turning 

up the radio and fresh air will do little to keep you going. 
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2.4 Alcohol 


FACT! Each year around 550 people are killed and 


around 14,000 injured in drink-drive related crashes. 


It is illegal to drive with more than 


A breath alcohol level in excess of 35 micrograms per
 


100ml
 


A blood alcohol level in excess of 80 milligrams per
 


100ml
 


A urine alcohol level in excess of 107 milligrams per
 


100ml 

The only safe option is NOT to drink if you plan to drive. Any 

amount of alcohol affects your ability to drive safely, not least 

because your reaction times and ability to judge speed and 

distances are impaired. Even a small amount of alcohol may 

INCREASE the risk of falling asleep at the wheel but 

DECREASE your awareness of falling asleep. 

Remember that alcohol can remain in your system for 

around 24 hours and drinks you consume during the course 

of an evening can potentially affect your fitness to drive the 

next morning. 

If you’re convicted of a drink-driving offence, you will lose 

your HGV entitlement - and with it your livelihood. 
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9 Respect
 


Always set a good example to other drivers - you are the 

professional driver so make sure you set a good example. 

Bear in mind how other road users may see you. Those who 

have no knowledge of driving large commercial vehicles may 

wonder why you’re making certain manoeuvres. Losing your 

temper won’t make your life easier. Keeping your emotions 

under control makes driving safer and less stressful for you. 

9.1 Other Road Users 

Know how your vehicle affects other road users. Turbulence 

from your vehicle, for example, affects: 

Pedestrians
 


Cyclists
 


Motorcycles
 


Cars
 


Horse riders
 


Caravans
 


Buses
 


Other goods vehicles
 


There is limited visibility around your vehicle, due to its size. 

So use your mirrors and check any blind spots thoroughly 

when manoeuvring (see section 6). 

Remember that pedestrians may step onto the road without 

warning. Be aware that your mirrors could strike a 

pedestrian just as hard as the main body of your vehicle. 
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9.4 Retaliation 

Other road users may not drive courteously. Resist the 

temptation to retaliate in such situations. Always drive: 

Courteously
 


With anticipation
 


Calmly, allowing for others’ mistakes
 


With full control of your vehicle
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10 Safety Champions 
 

As a professional driver you cannot afford to forget safety, 

even when you are under pressure. A safety champion is 

someone who: 

Understands safety issues and how dangerous
 


situations occur while driving
 


Respects other road users at all times
 


Updates their skills regularly
 


Takes responsibility for their actions behind the wheel
 


With their extra skills and knowledge a professional driver 

has the ability to influence other road users in the way they 

drive. Acting as safety champions they can ensure that 

everyone benefits from a safer, more pleasant and secure 

driving environment. 
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Appendix 1: Useful Contacts
 


Freight Best Practice 

Tel: 0845 877 0 877 (Order Hotline) 

www.freightbestpractice.org.uk 

Department for Transport 

Tel: 020 7944 8300 

www.dft.gov.uk 

British Vehicle Rental and Leasing Association 

Tel: 01494 434 747 

www.bvrla.co.uk 

Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport 

(UK) 

Tel: 01536 740 104 

www.ciltuk.org.uk 

Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency 

Tel: 0870 240 0009 (Driver Enquiries)  

Tel: 0879 240 0010 (Vehicle Enquiries) 

www.dvla.gov.uk 

Driving Standards Agency 

Tel: 0115 936 6666 

www.dsa.gov.uk 

Freight Transport Association 

Tel: 01892 526171 

www.fta.co.uk 

Health and Safety Executive 

Tel: 08701 545500 

www.hse.gov.uk 
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Highways Agency 

Tel: 08457 50 40 30 

www.highways.gov.uk 

www.heavygoodvehicle.com 

Institute of Advanced Motoring 

Tel: 020 8996 9600 

www.iam.org.uk 

MET Office (Weather Advice) 

Tel: 0870 900 0100 

www.met-office.gov.uk 

SQA Examination Board 

Tel:  0845 279 1000 

www.sqa.org.uk 

Road Haulage Association 

Tel: 01932 841515 

www.rha.net 

RoadSafe 

Tel: 020 7344 1605 

www.roadsafe.com 

Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents 

(RoSPA) 

Tel: 0121 248 2000 

www.rospa.com 

Safe and Fuel Efficient Driving (SAFED) 

Tel: 0870 190 8440 

www.safed.org.uk 

Skills for Logistics 

Tel:  0870 6060440 

www.skillsforlogistics.org 
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Transport Research Laboratory
 

Tel: 0800 056 500
 

www.trl.co.uk/fea
 

Unite
 

Tel: 020 7611 2500
 

www.unitetheunion.org.uk
 

United Road Transport Union (URTU)
 

Tel: 0800 52 66 39
 

www.urtu.com 
 

Vehicle and Operator Services Agency
 

Tel: 0870 6060440
 

www.vosa.gov.uk 
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Work Contacts 

Main Reception: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Traffic Office: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Warehouse: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Service Bay: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Name: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Name: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 

Name: 

Tel: 

Mobile: 
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Appendix 2: Further Information
 


If you would like to find out more about safe driving, the 

following publications are a good place to start. Contact the 

issuing organisation to get hold of a copy. 

Driving at work – managing work-related road safety
 


http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg382.pdf (HSE)
 


Your guide to ABS and EBS (VOSA)
 


The BVRLA guide to driving at work (BVRLA)
 


Health and safety in road haulage (HSE)
 


Drivers’ hours and tachograph rules for goods
 


vehicles in the UK (VOSA)
 


Guide to maintaining roadworthiness (VOSA)
 


Check it out (DVD – VOSA)
 


WorkSmart videos for workplace transport (series of
 


video clips available via the web – HSE)
 


The official guide to hazard perception (DVD: ISBN
 


0115528652 – DSA)
 


Work related road safety (DfT)
 


The Official Highway Code (ISBN 0115528148 - DSA)
 


The Official DSA guide to Driving Goods Vehicles
 


(ISBN 0115528997 - DSA)
 


Driving for Work: Mobile Phones (RoSPA)
 


Driving for Work: Safer Speed Policy (RoSPA)
 


Workplace Transport Safety (HSE)
 


Safety of Loads on Vehicles – Code of Practice (DfT)
 


Code of Practice: Coupling or Uncoupling and Parking
 


of Large Goods Vehicles and Trailers (HSE/IRTE)
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SAFED for HGVs: A Guide to Safe and Fuel Efficient 

Driving for HGVs (Freight Best Practice) 

SAFED for Vans: A Guide to Safe and Fuel Efficient 

Driving for Vans (Freight Best Practice) 

CPC Driver training (Transport Office) 

www.transportoffice.gov.uk/cpc 
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Appendix 3: Daily Checks
 


The daily walk-round, which should take place before you begin a journey, 

should cover: 

brakes lights 

tyres windscreen, wipers and washers 

wheels (inc. nuts) oil / fuel (levels) 

horn mirrors 

tachograph / speedometer body (damage / dents) 

number plates reflectors and reflective plates 

exhaust system any coupling gear 

speed limiter correct plating 

seat belts proper licensing with appropriate 

valid disc displayed 

any load being carried 

When in the cab you should check: 

the driving seat is correctly adjusted for you 

all interior and exterior mirrors are clean and adjusted 

appropriately for you 

lenses and screens of rear-view video equipment are clean and 

clear 

gauges and warning systems are working 

the parking brake is applied 

the gear selector is in neutral 

you have sufficient fuel for your journey 

your mobile phone is switched off or diverted to voicemail 

the doors are working and are closed 

the in-cab height indicator 

Before starting your journey be sure that you understand: 

the controls of the vehicle 

the vehicle size – weight, height and width 

handling 

brakes – whether ABS is fitted 
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11 Driver Personal Log 

Fill in your daily hours and expenses and keep for your own 

personal records (please photocopy for repeated use) 

Date…………….. 

Day Hours Vehicle Job Details Expenses 

Monday 

Tuesday 

Wednesday 

Thursday 

Friday 

Saturday 

Sunday 

Total 
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